


(NJT BOARD - 01119/05) 

Minutes of the actions taken at the Open Session of the re-scheduled Board of 
Directors' meetings of the New Jersey Transit Corporation (NJ TRANSIT), NJ TRANSIT 
Rail Operations, Inc., NJ TRANSIT Bus Operations, Inc. and NJ TRANSIT Mercer, Inc. 
held at NJ TRANSIT Headquarters, One Penn Plaza East, Newark, New Jersey on 
Wednesday, January 19,2005. 

Present: 
Jack Lettiere, Chairman 
Keith Barrack, Governor's Representative 
John McGoldrick 
Patrick W. Parkinson 

George D. Warrington, Executive Director 
Lynn Bowersox, Assistant Executive Director, Corporate Commun. & External Affairs 
James Gigantino, Acting Vice President & General Manager, Bus Operations 
William Duggan, Vice President & General Manager, Rail Operations 
Kenneth Worton, Deputy Attorney General 
Frank J. Hopper, Assistant Executive Director, Procurement & Support Services 
James Redeker, Assistant Executive Director, Policy, Technology & Customer Services 
Richard Sarles, Assistant Executive Director, Capital Planning and Programs 
William McManimon, Acting Chief Financial Officer & Controller 
Gwen A. Watson, Board Secretary 
Robert Guarnieri, Auditor General 

Chairman Jack Lettiere convened the Open Session at 10:05 am in accordance with the 
Open Public Meetings Act. Chairman Lettiere asked for a motion to adopt the minutes of 
the December 15, 2004 meeting. A motion was made by Patrick Parkinson, seconded 
by John McGoldrick and unanimously adopted. 

Executive Director George Warrington highlighted the following from his monthly 
business report. 

Executive Director Warrington's remarks focused on the operating budget for Fiscal 
Year 2006 which will continue to be refined over the next several months. Executive 
Director Warrington began this discussion at the November Board meeting, at which 
time he committed to bring forward a preliminary budget with cost and revenue 
assumptions, as well as a detailed proposal on fares and a schedule of public hearings. 

Executive Director Warrington presented a slide presentation and said 90 percent of the 
total budget of $1.4 billion goes directly for bus and rail service delivery. He said only 
10 percent of the costs are for administrative support of operations. Executive Director 
Warrington said overhead and back-office expenses have been reduced by $50 million 
since he arrived in 2002. 



(NJT BOARD - 0111 9\05) 

Executive Director Warrington said NJ TRANSIT will continue to reduce expenses and 
focus on further reducing the $60.6 million gap that is in the preliminary Fiscal Year 
2006 budget. 

Executive Director Warrington said it is also important to note that, since 2002, NJ 
TRANSIT has added substantially more service across the system, such as the 
Montclair Connection, Secaucus Junction, 83 new trains on an average weekday, and 
more than 100 regular and seasonal weekend trains to the commuter rail system, plus 
6,000 new parking spaces and about 50 bus routes as well as the new River LlNE light 
rail service and extensions on the Hudson-Bergen Light Rail to Weehawken and in 
Bayonne. 

Executive Director Warrington said more expansive and robust services are attracting 
more transit riders. He said with a steady growth rate of about four percent systemwide 
this fiscal year, ridership on the railroad, Newark City Subway and interstate bus service 
is the highest it has ever been in NJ TRANSIT'S 25-year history. 

Executive Director Warrington said that to pay for new services and to cover cost 
increases associated with inflation as well as spiraling fuel and security costs, NJ 
TRANSIT has put together a fiscally conservative fare proposal and will continue to 
identify more cost efficiencies. 

He said the fare proposal meets two objectives: to achieve the highest revenue yield 
with the lowest impact on fares and to encourage intermodal travel and usage of th6 
transit network by improving the interchangeability of fares on the system. 

Executive Director Warrington said this proposal contains an average increase on a 
systemwide basis of about 15 percent and would yield the Corporation about 60 million 
dollars in revenue. Executive Director Warrington said the major components of the 
proposal are that intrastate bus, subway and light rail commuter monthly passes will not 
increase at all, more than one in three local bus, subway and light rail passengers will 
experience no increase and one-way tickets on local bus, the Newark City Subway and 
the River LlNE would increase from $1 . I 0  to $1.25. He said no increase will be applied 
to monthly commuter passes on the Hudson-Bergen Light Rail Line, however, the one- 
way fare would go from $1.50 to $1.75. 

Interstate bus and base rail fares would increase by an average of 13 percent which is 
less than a $1 .OO for most people buying a one-way ticket. 

Executive Director Warrington said historically on the railroad, a 25 percent discount 
has been offered for roundtrip travel on off-peak and weekend trains, a pricing policy 
that dates back to predecessor railroads and was originally intended to induce incidental 
travel. Since 2002, NJ TRANSIT has added about 45 non-peak trains on an average 
weekday and demand on many off-peak trains is indistinguishable from peak period 
travel. Executive Director Warrington said in recognition of the improvement in service 



(NJT BOARD - 0111 9/05) 3 

offering and travel trends, the discount for off-peak roundtrip tickets will be reduced by 
half, from 25 percent to 12.5 percent. 

Executive Director Warrington said the proposal also addresses a historical anomaly in 
fares that NJ TRANSIT is going to remedy in a gradual way. For more than 20 years, 
MetroNorth Railroad paid NJ TRANSIT a contract amount as reimbursement for fares 
that were artificially "held down" to match MetroNorth1s lower fares. Two years ago, 
those payments ended when MetroNorth's fares exceeded NJ TRANSIT'S fares, which 
had a budget impact of $700,000. Executive Director Warrington said this practice of 
artificially holding down fares for a relatively small segment of customers means that 
commuters from Suffern to Ho-Ho-Kus, and from Montvale to Westwood on the 
Pascack Valley Line pay as much as 25 percent less than other NJ TRANSIT 
customers pay for a comparable trip anywhere else on the system. Executive Director 
Warrington said rather than equalize the fares overnight, NJ TRANSIT is going to do it 
incrementally to make it more affordable for customers by raising the previously held 
down fares by five percent, in addition to the systemwide base increase. 

Executive Director Warrington said that one other anomaly that NJ TRANSIT has 
addressed is the change in terminal fee. This is a fee paid by customers onboard trains 
that want to go to New York using a Hoboken or Newark ticket. Executive Director 
Warrington said that today, the fee is variable onboard Hoboken trains based on the 
boarding station, but it is a flat $2.75 on Newark trains. He said going forward, a 
standard, flat $3.10 change in terminal fee would be charged onboard all trains for New 
York destination changes. 

Executive Director Warrington said systemwide, 91 percent of average daily riders will 
see their fares increase by 15 percent or less. 

Executive Director Warrington said the good news for many commuters is that they will 
see substantial benefits from new connectivity and improved interchangeability features 
of their passes. Weekly and monthly rail pass holders will be able to connect to local 
bus or light rail service at no additional charge. NJ TRANSIT is going to be offering free 
feeder fares for those customers. 

Executive Director Warrington said that, for example, a commuter traveling to New York 
with a monthly Northeast Corridor rail pass will be able to make his or her River LINE 
connection for free, a savings of $18.00 a month. Another example, rail pass holders 
who use Broad Street Station or the Newark City Subway will be able to ride local buses 
at no additional charge, a savings of $20.00 a month. In addition, rail pass riders to 
Hoboken can transfer to Hudson-Bergen Light Rail for free, which results in a $30.00 a 
month savings for those customers. 

Executive Director Warrington said that as NJ TRANSIT moves toward better 
integration of the fare system, NJ TRANSIT will offer cross honoring all day, every day 
to customers who want to use their passes to ride any mode, as long as the trip is of 
equal or lesser fare value. This means commuters can ride a train to New York in the 



(NJT BOARD - 0111 9/05) 4 

morning and use their rail passes to ride an NJ TRANSIT bus home in the evening or on 
the weekends at no charge, providing more flexibility particularly to commuters on the 
MainlBergen, Pascack Valley and Raritan Lines, as well as the Route 91Coast Line 
Corridor. 

Executive Director Warrington said copies of the detailed fare proposal will be available 
to the public at major stations and on the NJ TRANSIT website. He thanked the Transit 
Advisory Committees and other stakeholder groups, including representatives from New 
Jersey Association of Railroad Passengers, Delaware Valley Association of Railraod 
Passengers, Lackawana Coalition, Tri-state Transportation, and the Black Ministers 
Council, who have met informally with NJ TRANSIT management and staff over the last 
month. Executive Director Warrington said that while there may not be universal 
agreement about how best to close the budget gap, the stakeholders made suggestions 
about the specific fare proposal and the schedule and location of public hearings, many 
of which have been incorporated. 

Executive Director Warrington said public hearings on the fare proposal would begin oh 
February 15, 2005. A total of 13 hearings will be held over a two-week period around 
the State and in New York City, at locations designed to be convenient for commuters t@ 
access going to and from work locations. In addition, hearings will be held in the 
evening hours and an extra session will be held on a Saturday in New Brunswick t6 
maximize the opportunity for customers to provide NJ TRANSIT with feedback. 
Executive Director Warrington said comments will be taken in writing at the hearing 
locations, at all customer service offices, and by e-mail at transitfares@.nitransit.com or 
through the NJ TRANSIT website. 

Executive Director Warrington discussed the financial outlook going forward. All public 
transportation systems rely on non-fare revenues to underwrite operating costs. By 
definition, public support for mass transit is based on the principle that everyon8 
benefits, including non-users, from the congestion relief, pollution reduction, enhanced 
mobility and economic growth that transit provides. 

Executive Director Warrington said that to encourage transit usage, fares are set at 
levels that only cover a portion of the costs to operate the system. In New Jersey, by 
policy over the last 25 years, fares recovered between 40 and 50 percent of costs which 
is consistent with industry standards. 

Executive Director Warrington said the consequence of the economic model is that if 
creates an inherent gap, that fare increases even at the rate of inflation will never be 
sufficient to cover that gap and, in fact, the gap grows relentlessly. Every dollar of 
expense in the budget is only 40 cents in passenger revenue, leaving a gap of 60 cent$ 
on the dollar. 

Executive Director Warrington said, for example, inflation of three percent annually adds 
$42 million on a $1.4 billion dollar budget which is before consideration of any new 
services that communities want such as Monmouth, Ocean and Middlesex, West 



(NJT BOARD - 01119l05) 5 

Trenton, Lackawanna Cutoff and the Northern Branch. Any new service not only 
requires upfront capital, but also increases the gap the day the service opens. In the 
last three years, Secaucus Junction, the Montclair connection and River LINE services 
added more than $70 million to operating costs. In fact, expenses for operating 
commuter and light rail services have grown twice as fast as bus and all administrative 
costs combined. 

In addition, the gap is exacerbated by variable, external costs that can skyrocket above 
normal inflationary rates, like fuel, healthcare and security. 

Executive Director Warrington said this is not a recent phenomenon. Since 1990, it has 
been largely masked because the gap was covered with more than $2 billion that was 
taken from the capital program. 

Executive Director Warrington said while that trend cannot be reversed overnight, N3 
TRANSIT has frozen the level of capital to operating transfer again in this year's budget 
at $356 million, a policy decision that ensures vital state of good repair work will 
continue to support the current system safely and reliably. 

Executive Director Warrington said exposing the gap also forces NJ TRANSIT to 
recognize, focus on and deal with the real need to adequately fund transit operations 
going forward. This economic model requires a fundamental, structural fix that 
combines reasonable, periodic fare increases with the commitment of an adequate level 
of public resources, particularly as demand for new services continues to grow. He 
looks forward to working with the Chairman and policymakers to resolve not only the 
important capital funding issues, but also the equally important structural question of the 
operating gap. 

Executive Director Warrington said following the public hearing process, he expects to 
return to the Board in April with a final budget and fare proposal for consideration and 
approval for Fiscal Year 2006. 

Executive Director Warrington said NJ TRANSIT has been working on an economic 
analysis of the impacts of the Access to the Region's Core tunnel project, an analysis 
that thoroughly examines the project's impacts on construction and permanent jobs, 
personal income, and on other indicators of economic benefits for both sides of the 
Hudson River. Executive Director Warrington said that work is wrapping up and NJ 
TRANSIT expects to share that report next month. 

Executive Director Warrington said in February, NJ TRANSIT will also have ridership 
data and preliminary capital and operating cost estimates for the Monmouth, Ocean, 
and Middlesex project and NJ TRANSIT expects to begin briefing counties on the data. 
Meanwhile due diligence on the federal process will continue, as will progress towards 
selecting a locally preferred alternative. NJ TRANSIT will also be working with 
policymakers to build project consensus over the next several months. 



(NJT BOARD - 01/19/05) 6 

Executive Director Warrington congratulated Chairman Lettiere on his appointment as 
President of the American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials 
(AASHTO). 

Board Member McGoldrick commented that as a commuter for 25 years, he has not met 
a fare increase that he liked and, in fact, has voted against fare increases in the past. 
Board Member McGoldrick said that the preliminary fare proposal should be presented 
at public hearings because it is fair and practical. He said that the State is faced with a 
$4 million budget deficit and it is not reasonable to expect transportation funding from 
State sources. Board Member McGoldrick said there is an inherent structural gap and 
he hopes that Executive Director Warrington continues to make that point because 
there is a need to change the funding for public transportation. He said transportation is 
extremely valuable and has to be maintained. He encouraged riders to attend the 
hearings because the Board wants to hear what the riders have to say. Board Member 
McGoldrick said no final decision on this fare proposal has been made and public 
comment is encouraged. 

Board Member Parkinson commented that this is the second fare increase in 15 years. 
He suggested that NJ TRANSIT consider having annual hearings on fare increase. He' 
also suggested that NJ TRANSIT evaluate service levels and determine whether certain 
services should be continued. Board Member Parkinson encouraged the public to 
attend the hearings. 

Chairman Lettiere thanked Executive Director Warrington for his report. Chairman 
Lettiere said transportation is an important issue as we move forward. He encourages 
public comment at the hearings. He said if anyone is unable to attend the hearings, 
comments will be received through NJ TRANSIT'S website at 
transitfares@nitransit.com. He said all comments would be taken into consideration. 

William Wright presented the Advisory Committee Report. Mr. Wright said this is the 
third fare increase for commuters and no gas tax increase. He said there is an 
imbalance. Mr. Wright said the interstate commuter would view this as a discriminatory 
increase because there is no gas tax. 

There were no public comments on agenda items. 



(NJT BOARD - 01119105) 

Executive Director Warrington presented the following Action ltem for approval: 

0501 -1 RAIL ROLLING STOCK PROCUREMENT ENGINEERING SUPPORT 
SERVICES 

In the fall of 1999, the Board authorized S W  Inc. to provide engineering 
support and inspection services for the purchase of 200 rail cars, 29 
electric locomotives and 33 diesel locomotives for a contract amount of 
about $8 million. Two requests after that allowed for inspection due to 
unforeseen overseas manufacturing facilities and scheduling changes. 
Approval is sought for a contract amendment to support post- 
manufacturing modifications to this Alstom equipment, which will ensure 
increased reliability and passenger comfort. Approval of this contract 
amendment in the amount of $1,841,088 will augment staff expertise and 
ensure that contract requirements are met. 

John McGoldrick moved the resolution, Patrick W. Parkinson seconded it 
and it was unanimously adopted. 

Executive Director Warrington presented the following Consent ltem for approval: 

0501 -2 MORRlSVlLLE YARD - PHASE 1 - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT AND CLOSEOUT 

Authorization to amend a contract (No. 01-012) with a joint venture M I  
Track Enterprises and LK Comstock (MTEILKC) of Bronx, NY, at a cost 
not to exceed $350,000, for settlement of outstanding claims and closeout 
of the construction contract for Morrisville Yard in Falls Township, PA, for 
a total contract authorization of $45,283,602. 

Patrick W. Parkinson moved the resolution, Keith Barrack seconded it and 
it was unanimously adopted. 

The following public comments were heard on non-agenda items: 

David Peter Alan, on behalf of the Lackawanna Coalition, congratulated Chairman 
Lettiere on his appointment to AASHTO. Mr. Alan also thanked everyone who 
coordinated a very enjoyable and well-planned celebration of NJ TRANSIT'S 2sth 
Anniversary. Mr. Alan also said that New Jersey's motor fuels tax remains among the 
lowest in the nation and there has not been an expression to increase it, despite the fad  
that the Transportation Trust Fund will be out of funds in less than six months. Mr. Alan 
also noted that a transit fare increase is a tax increase and one that impacts most 
severely the people who can least afford to pay. Mr. Alan said raising rail and bus fares 
without a commensurate increase in the motor fuels tax is unfair to transit riders. 
Further, Mr. Alan said a dedicated and fully-protected funding for NJ TRANSIT'S 
operating and capital budgets is needed. Mr. Alan said without dedicated funding for 



(NJT BOARD - 01/19/05) 

both and without an increase in the gasoline tax, the Lackawanna Coalition objects to 
any increase in transit fares. 

Freeholder Theodore J. Narozanick, on behalf of the Monmouth County Board of 
Chosen Freeholders, expressed the Planning Board's strong support for the Lakehurst 
to Monmouth Junction passenger rail alternative. Freeholder Narozanick said 
Monmouth County has seen a dramatic influx of new homes and businesses and this 
trend will continue. He said a new passenger rail line would provide a desperately 
needed transportation alternative to help relieve traffic congestion and offer residents 
additional ways to travel to, from and within the region. Freeholder Narozanick said NJ 
TRANSIT is preparing a Draft Environmental Impact Study (DEIS) that is evaluating 
three passenger rail alternatives for the Monmouth-Ocean-Middlesex region and he 
believes the Lakehurst to Monmouth Junction alternative is the best choice for 
passenger rail. Freeholder Narozanick emphasized that a locally preferred alternative 
must be chosen as part of the DEIS process. Further, he requested that the Technical 
Advisory Committee and the Community Liaison Committee be informed about the 
ridership projections and methodology used to produce the figures and the the Planning 
staff have sufficient time to review the numbers. In addition, he requested that the DElS 
move forward in a timely manner. 

Fred Brody, Monmouth County Planning Board Transportation Council, made a 
statement in support of the proposed Monmouth-Ocean-Middlesex Passenger Rail Line. 
Mr. Brody said the Council believes that this rail service via Freehold and western 
Monmouth County is the most critical transportation project for Monmouth County. Mr. 
Brody said the project remains stalled in the DElS and urged NJ TRANSIT to complete 
the DEE process. Mr. Brody said the Council strongly supports expediting the selection 
of a Locally Preferred Alternative with an alignment serving western Monmouth County. 

Daniel Green, Secretary, Central Jersey Rail Coalition, said Monmouth, Ocean and 
Middlesex Counties would be home to one-fourth of New Jersey's entire population and 
labor force. He said the Monmouth-Ocean-Middlesex (MOM) Passenger Rail project 
will provide service to inland portions of all three counties and it is a vital component df 
a sensible and practical regional transportation plan for the future. Mr. Green said 
thousands of petition cards have been collected that document the large number of 
residents who strongly support the MOM rail project. Mr. Green said of the three 
proposed alignments, the route which will serve the most passengers and the most 
destinations is the one from Lakehurst to Farmingdale to Monmouth Junction. Mr. 
Green said the Central Jersey Rail Coalition is solidly in agreement on this with Ocean 
and Monmouth Counties and the New Jersey Association of Railroad Passengers. 

Bonnie Goldschly, Monmouth County Planning Board, presented 26 resolutions in 
support of the proposed Lakehurst to Monmouth Junction passenger rail line. Further, 
Ms. Goldschly also presented a resolution in opposition to the proposed alternative 
route from Red Bank to Howell. 



(NJT BOARD - 01/19/05) 

Bruce Shapiro, on behalf of Assemblymen Panter and Morgan and the residents of the 
12'~ District, expressed support for the need to complete the DElS and a locally 
preferred alternative for the proposed Monmouth-Ocean-Middlesex passenger rail line 
Mr. Shapiro said the Monmouth-Ocean-Middlesex passenger rail line would benefit the 
residents of interior Ocean and Monmouth Counties by servicing an area that currently 
relies on bus service for commuters en route to New York City and Newark. Mr. Shapiro 
said he is strongly opposed to the proposed Red Bank Line. 

Kathy Edmond, Director, Ocean County Transportation Services, said Ocean County 
backs the growing coalition of "Say Yes to MOM" supporters. Ms. Edmond said 
Monmouth, Ocean and Middlesex Counties represents one of the fastest growing areas 
of the State. She said it is critical that this region be served with viable cornmutin@ 
options for both current and future residents, in particular the Monmouth Junction 
alignment. 

Patrick Torpey, "Say Yes to MOM" supporters, expressed his support of the proposed 
Monmouth-Ocean-Middlesex passenger rail line. Mr. Torpey said the residents of these 
counties are in support of this project. 

William Layton, Executive Director, NJCAA, expressed his support of the Monmouth- 
Ocean-Middlesex passenger rail line and urged NJ TRANSIT to move forward with the 
DElS and the locally preferred alternative. 

Eric Larkin, Utility and Transportation Contractors Association of New Jersey, 
expressed support of the Monmouth-Ocean-Middlesex passenger rail line. Mr. Larkin 
said this line would elevate the economies and quality of life in the areas surrounding 
the railroad. Specifically, Mr. Larkin endorsed the Monmouth Junction alignment of the 
project. Mr. Larkin said the Monmouth Junction connection would allow 13 townships to 
be linked with the Amtrak Northeast Corridor in the future. Mr. Larkin said the rail 
corridor would serve the most communities and residents and would provide the least 
environmental impact. 

William Wright, New Jersey Association of Railroad Passengers, congratulated 
Chairman Lettiere on his appointment to AASHTO. Mr. Wright said the Monmouth- 
Ocean-Middlesex passenger rail line project should have been built and operating 
already. Mr. Wright expressed his support of this project which will be a valuable ass& 
to a growing area of the State. 

Since there were no further comments or business, the Chairman called for 
adjournment and a motion to adjourn was made by John McGoldrick, seconded by 
Patrick W. Parkinson and unanimously adopted. 

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 11 :30 am. 



(NJT BOARD - 111 9/05) 35890' 

NEW JERSEY TRANSIT CORPORATION 
NJ TRANSIT BUS OPERATIONS INC. 
NJ TRANSIT RAlL OPERATIONS INC. 

NJ TRANSIT MERCER INC. 
RE-SCHEDULED BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JANUARY 19,2005 

MINUTES 

PAGE 

b APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

b EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S MONTHLY REPORT 

b ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORTS 

b PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

ACTION ITEM 

0501 -1 : RAlL ROLLING STOCK PROCUREMENT: ENGINEERING 3591 3 
SUPPORT SERVICES 

Authorization to increase funding of contract (No. 99RS-665) 
with STV Inc., of New York, NY for engineering support and 
inspection services for the purchase of 265 rail cars, 29 electric 
locomotives and 33 diesel locomotives in the amount of 
$1,841,088 for a total contract authorization of $1 7,475,204 
plus five percent for contingencies. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

0501-2 MORRlSVlLLE YARD - PHASE 1: CONSTRUCTION 35916 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT AND CLOSEOUT 

Authorization to amend a contract (No. 01-012) with a joint 
venture M-Track Enterprises and LK Comstock (MTEILKC) of 
Bronx, NY, at a cost not to exceed $350,000, for settlement of 
outstanding claims and closeout of the construction contract for 
Morrisville Yard in Falls Township, PA, for a total contract 
authorization of $45,283,602. 

b PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 35837 


























































